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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 2013 2012

RM’000 RM’'000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 2 2,513,159 1,327,361
Deposits and placements with banks - 989
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) 3 573,520 605,456
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 4 87,775 120,902
Loans, advances and financing 5 112,654 176,880
Other assets 6 6,470 699
Derivative assets 7 31,905 4,384
Tax recoverable 4,174 2,396
Deferred taxation 8 285 -
Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia 9 2,300 2,300
Property, plant and equipment 10 7,941 7,809
TOTAL ASSETS 3,340,183 2,249,176
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Deposits from customers 11 1,888,331 1,134,114
Deposits and placements of banks and

other financial institutions 12 877,854 577,653

Bills and acceptances payable 19,111 22,249
Other liabilities 13 25,086 9,798
Derivative liabilities 14 22,156 5,145
Deferred taxation 8 - 1,758
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,832,538 1,750,717
Share capital 15 135,800 135,800
Reserves 16 371,845 362,659
Shareholders’ funds 507,645 498,459

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 3,340,183 2,249,176

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 26 5,260,680 2,576,447
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

Interest income 17
Interest expense 18
Net interest income
Other operating income ' 19
Net income
Other operating expenses 20
Profit before allowance
Write back of losses on loans, advances

and financing 23
Profit before taxation
Taxation 25

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets:
- Realised gain transferred to profit or loss
on disposal
- Net (loss)/gain from change in fair value
- Income tax effects

Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Earnings per share (sen) 27
- Basic / Diluted

2013
RM’000

89,504

(23,618)

65,886
12,548

78,434
(64,991)

13,443

360

13,803

(3,437)

10,366

(1,553)
(21)
394

(1,180)

9,186

7.63

2012
RM’'000

49,016

(14,290)

34,726

18,546

53,272

(42,723)

10,549

575

11,124

(3,190)

7,934

407
(102)

305

8,239

5.84
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

At 1 January 2013

Total comprehensive income
for the financial year
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2012

Total comprehensive income
for the financial year

Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2012

Non-distributable Distributable

Available-

Share Statutory for-sale Retained
capital _reserve reserve profits Total
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
135,800 128,357 2,197 232,105 498,459
- - (1,180) 10,366 9,186
- 2,592 - (2,592) -
135,800 130,949 1,017 239,879 507,645
135,800 126,373 1,892 226,155 490,220
- - 305 7,934 8,239
- 1,984 - (1,984) -
135,800 128,357 2,197 232,105 498,459
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment written off

Net amount written back in respect of losses on
loans, advances and financing

Gross dividend income from securities
available-for-sale

Gain on sale of securities available-for-sale

Accretion of discount

Net unrealised (gain)/loss on fair vaiue
changes in derivatives

Net unrealised loss on revaluation of securities
held-for-trading

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Deposits and placements with banks
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’)

Loans, advances and financing

Other assets

Derivative assets

Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Bills and acceptances payable

Other liabilities

Derivative liabilities

CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Taxation paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

201

RM00

O |w

13,803

4,453
269
(210)
(110)
(1,884)
(3,346)
(10,506)

2,450

4,919

989
29,486
64,436

(5,771)
(17,015)

754,217
300,201

(3,138)
15,288
17,011
1,160,623

(6,864)

1,153,759

2012
RM’000

11,124

4,717
(66)

(510)

(13)

(2,870)
1,954

586

14,922

5,017

(606,042)
10,578
448
13,229

(1,300)

180,188

521,478
(15,590)
7,276

(13,215)

116,989

(3,584)

113,405
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Note 2013
RM’000
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Gross dividend received from securities
available-for-sale 110
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,028)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 174
Proceeds from disposal of securities
available-for-sale 2,094
Net redemption/(purchase) of securities
available-for-sale 34,689
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED iN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 32,039
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,185,798
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AS AT 1 JANUARY 1,327,361

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2 2,513,159

2012
RM’000

13
(2,703)

66

(63,376)

" (66,000)

47,405
1,279,956

1,327,361
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported year. It also requires Directors to
exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Although these
estimates are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
may differ from estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note Il to the critical
accounting estimates and assumptions.

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Bank

The new accounting standards, amendments and improvements to published standards
and interpretations that are effective for the Bank’s financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2013 are as follows:

. MFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective from 1 January 2013) aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across MFRSs. The requirements do-not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards. The enhanced disclosure
requirements are similar to those in MFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”,
but apply to all assets and liabilities measured at fair value, not just financial ones.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(@) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Bank (continued)

) Amendment to MFRS 101 “Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”
(effective from 1 July 2012) requires entities to separate items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) in the statement of comprehensive income into two
groups, based on whether or not they may be recycled to profit or ioss in the
future. The amendments do not address which items are presented in OCI.

. Amendment to MFRS 119 “Employee benefits” (effective from 1 January 2013)
makes significant changes to the recognition and measurement of defined benefit
pension expense and termination benefits, and to the disclosures for all employee
benefits. Actuarial gains and losses will no longer be deferred using the corridor
approach. MFRS 119 shall be withdrawn on application of this amendment.

. Amendment to MFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” (effective from 1
January 2013) requires more extensive disclosures focusing on quantitative
information about recognised financial instruments that are offset in the statement
of financial position and those that are subject to master netting or similar
arrangements irrespective of whether they are offset.

The adoption of the new accounting standards, amendments to published standards and
interpretations do not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Bank but not yet effective

The Bank will apply the new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations in
the following financial period:

(i) Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2014

. Amendment to MFRS 132 “Financial instruments: Presentation” (effective
from 1 January 2014) does not change the current offsetting model in
MFRS 132. It clarifies the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off that the right of set-off must be available today (not
contingent on a future event) and legally enforceable for all counterparties
in the normal course of business. It clarifies that some gross settlement
mechanisms with features that are effectively equivalent to net settlement
will satisfy the MFRS 132 offsetting criteria.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Bank but not yet effective (continued)

(i) Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2015

MFRS 9 “Financial instruments - classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities” (effective from 1 January 2015) replaces the
multiple classification and measurement models in MFRS 139 with a single model
that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value. The basis
of classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The accounting and presentation for financial liabilities and for de-recognising
financial instruments has been relocated from MFRS 139, without change, except
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss
(‘FVTPL’). Entities with financial liabilities designated at FVTPL recognise changes
in the fair value due to changes in the liability’s credit risk directly in other
comprehensive income (‘OCI’). There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts
in OCl to profit or loss, but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

The guidance in MFRS 139 on impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting continues to apply.

MFRS 7 requires disclosures on transition from MFRS 139 to MFRS 9.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INTEREST INCOME RECOGNITION
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the instrument. When calculating the effective interest, the Bank
estimates cash flows (using projections based on its experience of customers’ behaviour)
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but excluding future credit losses. Fees
are included in the calculation to the extent that they can be measured and are considered to be
an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Where an account is classified as impaired, the Bank reduce the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continue unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Interest income from securities portfolio is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method. The interest income includes coupons earned/accrued and accretion/amortisation of
discount/premium on these securities.

RECOGNITION OF FEES AND OTHER INCOME

Loan arrangement fees and commissions are recognised as income when all conditions precedent
are fulfilled.

Commitment fee income relating to loans and guarantee fees is recognised over the period during
which the related service is provided or credit risk is undertaken.

Dividends from securities are recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
OTHER PROVISIONS
Provision are recognised when all of the following conditions have been met:

() The Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(i) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(ifi) A reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where the Bank expect a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as finance cost expense.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Bank has purchased with a
commitment to resell at a future date. The commitment to resell the securities is reflected as an asset
on the statement of financial position.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) Classification
The Bank classifies financial assets into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial investments available-for-sale, and loans and receivables. The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were required. Management
determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(a) Classification (continued)

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held-for -
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held-for-trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets may be designated at fair value through profit or loss when:

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities on a different basis; or

= a group of financial assets is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis; or )
Ll the assets include embedded derivatives and such derivatives are required to

be recognised separately.
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the ‘other categories.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date,
the date that an asset is delivered to or by the Bank.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets, carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Bank has transferred substantially all risk and
rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented in the income statement within ‘Other operating
gains/(losses)’ in the period in which they arise.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the Bank’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for
sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are including in the income statement as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of interest income. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Bank’s right to receive payments is established.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading liabilities and liabilities
designated at fair value, which are held at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when extinguished.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held-for-trading. A
financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held-for-trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified held-for-
trading are included in the income statement.

(b) Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this
category and are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
are deposits from customers and bills and acceptances payable.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the bank may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Bank uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement
is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair vaiue less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior
impairments of non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

The impairment loss is charged to the income statement unless it reverses a previous revaluation
surplus in which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Any subsequent increase in
recoverable amount is recognised in the income statement unless it reverses an impairment loss
on a revalued asset, in which case it is taken to revaluation surplus.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual
rates of depreciation are:

Office equipment and furniture 10 - 33%
Computer equipment and software 25 - 50%
Motor vehicles 25%
Bank premises alterations:

- movable 10%
- non-movable written off over lease terms

Depreciation on works-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverably amount (Note J).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are included in profit before taxation.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BILLS AND ACCEPTANCES PAYABLE

Bills and acceptances payable represents the Bank’s own bills and acceptances rediscounted and
outstanding in the market.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e.
the fair vaiue of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank
recognises profits on day one.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Bank
designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or, (2) hedges of highly probable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the disposal of the
equity security. :
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in
which the hedged item will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is
hedged takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair

value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

()

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transaction at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within
‘Other operating gains/(losses)’.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such a equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the income statement as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The tax expense for the period comprised current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of Malaysia and includes all taxes
based upon the taxable profits for the financial year.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit and loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences or unused tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority where there is an
intention to settled the balances on a net basis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and short-term

funds that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
financial period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

(b) Post employment benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pay fixed contributions
to the national pension scheme, the Employees’ Provident Fund (‘EPF’) and wiil have no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The contributions to EPF are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Bank participates in several employee compensation plans managed by Bank of America
Corporation (“BAC”), the ultimate holding company. The plans provide eligible employees with
stocks and options to purchase shares in BAC. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the stocks and options is recognised as an expense in the income
statement with a corresponding increase in equity compensation reserve over the vesting period.
However, there is no net equity impact on the Bank’s financial position as the Branch has
contracted to reimburse to BAC or through an intermediate holding company for the issuance of
these awards. The total amount to be recognised over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share awards and share options granted on the date of the grant.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares and options
that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date.
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- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

The Bank does not recognise a contingent assets and liabilities but discloses its existence in the
financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Bank or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrences of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Bank. The Bank does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its existence
where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Bank’s accounting policies and use of estimates are integral to understanding its reported
results. The Bank's most complex accounting estimates require management’s judgement to
ascertain the valuation of assets and liabilities. The Bank has established detailed policies and
control procedures intended to ensure that valuation methods, including any judgements made as
part of such methods, are well-controlled, independently reviewed and applied consistently from
period to period. In addition, the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process
for changing methodologies occurs in an appropriate manner. The Bank believes its estimates for
determining the valuation of its assets and liabilities are appropriate. The following is a brief
description of the Bank’s critical accounting estimates involving significant valuation judgement.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The majority of the Bank’s assets reported at fair value are based upon
quoted market prices or upon internally developed models that utilise independently
sourced market parameters, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and
currency rates.

The degree of management judgement involved in determining the fair value of a financial
instrument is dependent upon the availability of quoted market prices or observable
market parameters. For financial instruments that are traded actively and have quoted
market prices or parameters readily available, there is little-to-no subjectivity in
determining fair value. When observable market prices and parameters do not exist,
management judgement is necessary to estimate fair value. The valuation process takes
into consideration factors such as liquidity and concentration concerns and, for the
derivatives portfolio, counterparty credit risk.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The Bank’s held for trading financial assets are valued based upon quoted market prices.
The majority of the Bank’s derivative positions are valued using internally developed
models that use as their basis readily observable market parameters - that is, parameters
that are actively quoted and can be validated to external sources, including industry-
pricing services. Certain derivatives, however, are valued based upon models with
significant unobservable market parameters - that is, parameters that must be estimated
and are, therefore, subject to management judgement to substantiate the model valuation.
These instruments are normally either traded less actively or trade activity is one way.
Management’s judgement includes recording fair value adjustments (i.e., reductions) to
model valuations to account for parameter uncertainty when valuing complex or less
actively traded derivative transactions.

{b) Allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing

The Bank makes allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing based on
assessment of recoverability. Whilst management is guided by the relevant BNM
guidelines, management makes judgement on the future and other key factors in respect
of the recovery of loans and advances. Among the factors considered are the net
realisable value of the underlying coilateral value, the viability of the customer’s business
model, the capacity to generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations and the
aggregate amount and ranking of all other creditor claims.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Bank is principally engaged in all aspects of the banking business and in the provision of
related services.

The holding company of the Bank is Bank America International Financial Corporation, a
corporation incorporated in the United States of America.

The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Bank of America Corporation, a corporation
incorporated in the United States of America.

The Bank is a limited company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the Bank is at 18th Floor,

Wisma Goldhill, Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

2013 2012
RM'000 RM'000
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 11,424 13,838
Money at call and deposit placements maturing
within one month 2,501,735 1,313,523
2,513,159 1,327,361
SECURITIES HELD-FOR-TRADING (‘HFT)
2013 2012
RM’000 RM'000
Malaysian Government Securities 199,499 603,979
Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 374,021 1,477
573,520 605,456
SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (‘AFS’)
2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
Money market instruments:
Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 19,949 116,143
Malaysian Treasury Bills 64,831 -
Unguoted securities in Malaysia:
Shares 2,980 4,744
Bonds 15 15

87,775 120,902
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

(@)

(b)

(©)

Loans, advances and financing analysed by type:

At amortised cost:
Overdrafts
Term loans - factoring receivables

Claims on customers under acceptance credits

Staff loans
Revolving advances
Bills discounted
Real estate loans

Gross loans, advances and financing

Allowance for losses on loans, advances
and financing:
Individual assessment
Collective assessment

Total net loans, advances and financing

Gross loans, advances and financing
analysed by geographical distribution:

Malaysia
India

Gross loans, advances and financing
analysed by type of customer:

Domestic business enterprises

Domestic banking financial institutions
Domestic non-banking financial institutions
Government and statutory bodies
Individuals

Foreign entities

2013
RM’000

34,576
6,465
20,700
1,067
49,132

1,874

113,814

(831)
(329)

112,654

113,814

113,814

104,774

5,386
713
2,941

113,814

581
20,507
41,269

1,223
95,441
16,994

2,244

178,259

(770)
(609)

176,880

138,696
39,563

178,259

124,041
1,256
9,932

3,467
39,563

178,259
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Gross loans, advances and financing
analysed by interest rate sensitivity:

Fixed rate:
Housing loans
Other fixed rate loans

Variable rate:
BLR plus
Cost plus

Gross loans, advances and financing
analysed by economic purpose:

Purchase of transport vehicles

Purchase of landed property (residential)
Personal use

Purchase of consumer durables
Working capital

Gross loans, advances and financing

analysed by residual contractual maturity:

Within one year

One year to three years
Three years to five years
Over five years

2013
RM’000

836
105,134

3,104
4,740

113,814

139
2,710
59

33
110,873

113,814

104,584
6,333
1,467
1,430

113,814

2012
RM’000

912
164,101

2,825
10,421

178,259

181
3,148
56

82
174,792

178,259

161,139
14,406
621
2,093

178,259
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
RM’000 RM’'000
(9) Movements in impaired loans, advances
and financing are as follows:
At 1 January 952 891
Classified as impaired during the financial year 203 157
Interest income recognised during the financial year 66 60
Amount recovered during the financial year (172) (116)
Reclassified as performing during the financial year (46) (40)
At 31 December 1,003 952
Individual assessment allowance (831) (770)
Net impaired loans, advances and financing 172 182
Gross impaired loans as a % of gross loans, advances
and financing 0.88% 0.53%
(h) Movements in allowance for losses on impaired
loans, advances and financing are as follows:
Individual assessment allowance
At 1 January 770 760
Allowance made during the financial year 192 68
Write back made during the financial year (131) (58)

At 31 December 831 770
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
RM'000 RM’000
(h) Movements in allowance for losses on impaired loans,
advances and financing are as follows: (continued)
Collective assessment allowance
At 1 January 609 1,129
Write back made during the financial year (280) (520)
At 31 December 329 609
As % of gross loans, advances and financing
less individual assessment allowance 0.29% 0.34%
2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
i) Impaired loans, advances and financing
analysed by geographical distribution:
Malaysia 1,003 952
0 Impaired loans, advances and financing
analysed by economic purpose:
Purchase of landed property (residential) 1,003 943
Other purpose - 9
1,003 952
OTHER ASSETS
’ 2013 2012
RM'000 RM’000
Other receivables 6,430 404
Deposits 37 32

Prepayments 3 263

6,470 699
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DERIVATIVE ASSETS
2013 2012
RM’000 RM'000
Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 27,536 4,384
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 4,369 -
31,905 4,384
Contract or Year end
underlying positive
principal amount fair value
RM'000 RM'000
2013
Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 1,937,759 27,536
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 1,397,895 - 4,369
3,335,654 31,905
2012
Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 1,175,140 4,384
DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
statement of financial position:

2013 2012
RM’000 RM’'000
Deferred tax assets ) 1,585 497

Deferred tax liabilities (1,300) (2,255)

285 (1,758)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year comprises the following:

Accelerated Avaible-
General tax for-sale
allowance depreciation reserve Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2013 497 (1,522) (733) (1,758)
Credited to income statement (Note 25) 1,088 561 - 1,649
Credited to available-for-sale reserve - - 394 394
As at 31 December 2013 1,585 (961) (339) 285
At 1 January 2012 320 (1,677) (631) (1,988)
Credited to income statement (Note 25) 177 155 - 332
Charged to available-for-sale reserve - - (102) (102)
As at 31 December 2012 497 (1,522) (733) (1,758)

STATUTORY DEPOSIT WITH BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA

The non-interest bearing statutory deposit is maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance
with Section 26(2)(c) of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act, 2009, the amount of which is determined
as a set percentage of total eligible liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office Computer
equipment equipment
and furniture and software
RM'000 RM’000
2013
Cost
At 1 January 2013 8,002 11,885
Additions 469 1,706
Disposal (610) (2,434)
At 31 December 2013 7,861 11,157
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 4,270 8,737
Charge for the financial year 1,973 1,740
Disposal (435) (2,166)
At 31 December 2013 5,808 8,311
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 2,053 2,846

Bank
premises

alterations

RM’000

3,235

(875)

2,360

2,491
740
(875)

2,356

E-N

Works-
in-

progress
RM’000

185
2,853

3,038

3,038

Total
RM’'000

23,307
5,028
(3,919)

24,416

15,498
4,453
(3,476)

16,475

7,941
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Office Computer
equipment equipment Motor
and furniture and software vehicles
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2012
Cost
At 1 January 2012 8,070 11,555 199
Additions : 240 2,189 -
Transfer - 23 -
Disposal (308) (1,882) (199)
At 31 December 2012 8,002 11,885 -
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 2,578 8,898 197
Charge for the financial year 2,000 1,721 2
Disposal (308) (1,882) (199)
At 31 December 2012 4,270 8,737 -
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 3,732 3,148 -

Bank
premises

alterations

RM’000

2,996
239

3,235

1,497
994

2,491

744

Works-
in-

progress
RM’000

173
35
(23)

185

Total
RM’000

22,993
2,703

(2,389)

23,307

13,170
4,717
(2,389)

15,498

7,809
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The gross amount of assets fully depreciated but still in use amounted to RM10,121,183 (2012:

RM8,715,187).

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits
Saving deposits

Fixed deposits
» (a) Maturity structure of fixed deposits
is as follows:

Due within six months
Six months to one year
One year to five years
More than five years

(b) The deposits are sourced from the
following types of customers:

Business enterprises
individuals
Others

2013
RM’000

1,205,913
166
682,252

1,888,331

593,892
86,075
2,054
231

682,252

1,877,274
9,615
1,642

1,888,331

2012
RM000

751,162
254
382,698

1,134,114

375,995
205
6,283
215

382,698

1,123,072
9,922
1,120

1,134,114
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DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Licensed banks
Other financial institutions

OTHER LIABILITIES

Unearned discount on loans, advances
and financing

Other payables

Accruals

DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

Foreign exchange forwards and swaps
Interest rate and cross currency swaps

N

013

Foreign exchange forwards and swaps
Interest rate and cross currency swaps

2012

Foreign exchange forwards and swaps

201

RM’000

[5]

863,596
14,258

877,854

2013
RM’000

18,208
6,825

25,086

2013
RM’000

20,278
1,878

22,156

Contract or
underlying
principal amount
RM’000

1,179,281
267,895

1,447,176

1,004,885

2012
RM’000

532,157
45,496

577,653

2012
RM’000

5,145

5,145

Year end
negative

fair value
RM’000

20,278
1,878

22,156

5,145
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SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
Authorised:
250,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid:

135,800,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 135,800 135,800

RESERVES

(i

(ii)

(i)

The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and
Financial Institutions Act 1989 and is not distributable as cash dividends.

A single tier company tax was introduced effective 1 January 2008. Under this single tier
system, tax on a company’s profits is a final tax, and dividends distributed to shareholders
will be exempted from tax. Companies with Section 108 tax credit balance are given an
option to elect to move to a single tier system immediately or allowed to use the Section
108 credit balance for the purpose of dividend distribution during a transitional period of 6
years until 31 December 2013.

The Bank has elected to use its Section 108 credit balance for the purpose of dividend
distribution during a transitional period of 6 years until 31 December 2013. The Section
108 balance of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 will be frozen and can only be adjusted
downwards for any tax discharged, remitted or refunded during the 6 years period.

Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credits
under Section 108(6) of the Income Tax Act, 1967 and tax exempt income to frank
dividends out of its retained profits as at 31 December 2013.

Movement of the fair value reserve of available-for-sale securities is as follows:

2013 2012

RM'000 RM’000

At 1 January 2,197 1,892
Net change in revaluation reserve of financial assets

available-for-sale (1,574) 407

Deferred taxation 394 (102)

At 31 December 1,017 2,197
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v

INTEREST INCOME

Loans, advances and financing

Money at call and deposit placements with
banks and other financial institutions

Securities available-for-sale

Securities held-for-trading

Others

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Others

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fee income

Commission

Service charges and fees
Guarantee fees

Other fee income

Total fee income

Gross dividend income from
Securities available-for-sale

Gain on sale of securities available-for-sale

Net loss arising from securities held-for-trading

Net loss from sale of securities held-for-trading
Unrealised revaluation loss on securities held-for-trading

Unrealised gains/(loss) on revaluation of derivative instruments

Foreign exchange forwards and swaps
Interest rate and cross currency swaps

Balance carried forward

2013
RM’000

598
3,704
572
2,042

6,916

110

1,884

(9,118)
(2,450)

8,015
2,491

7,848

N
—
N

RM’000
5,501
33,584

2,870
7,061

49,016

2012
RM’000

792
13,497

14,290

2012
RM’000

737
3,746
729

1,800

7,012
13

(3,405)

(586)

(1,954)

1,080
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
Balance brought forward 7,848 1,080
Realised foreign exchange gain 4,504 17,145
Reimbursement of information technology expenses 194 255
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 66
Others 2 -
12,548 18,546
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs
Salaries, allowances and bonuses 18,824 12,711
Share-based compensation 361 -
Defined contribution plans 3,178 2,142
Other staff related cost 8,005 2,479
30,368 17,332
Establishment costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,453 4,717
Property, plant and equipment written off 269 -
Rental of premises 1,138 1,020
Rental of equipment 470 751
Repair and maintenance 994 1,367
Information technology expenses 481 1,917
Others 3,124 1,280
10,929 11,052
Marketing expenses
Advertising and publicity 32 217

Others 266 232

298 449
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

2013
RM’000
Administration and general expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Current.year
- statutory audit fees 117
- non-audit fees 60
Under-accrual from prior year
- statutory audit fees 124
- non-audit fees 109
Communication expenses 3,688
Legal and professional fees 756
Stationery and postages 490
Shared administrative support expenses 15,541
Others 2,511
23,396

64,991

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (‘CEQ’) AND DIRECTORS

The aggregate remuneration paid to the Directors of the Bank is as follows:

2013
RM’000

Executive Directors and CEO:
Salaries 1,395
Benefits-in-kind (based on estimated monetary value) -
Bonus 4,215
Defined contribution plan 954
Others 62

Non-Executive Directors:

Fees 150
6,776

3,057
820
396

7,488

1,930

13,890

42,723
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (‘CEO’) AND DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
The remuneration of the Directors of the Bank is within the following bands:

2013 2012
No. of No. of
Directors Directors
Executive

RM:

250,001 - 300,000
1,700,001 - 1,750,000
1,750,001 - 1,900,000
4,900,001 - 4,950,000

_ll_k.
a4,

Executive/Non-Executive/Independent

RM:
0 - 50,000

(o]
~

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

The Bank participates in several employee compensation plans managed by BAC, the ultimate
holding company. Descriptions of the material features of the equity compensation plans are
below. ,

The Key Associate Stock Plan (“KASP”) became effective on 1 January 2003. It provides for
different types of long-term awards, including stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock
units. These awards generally vest in three equal annual instalments beginning one year from the
grant date.

During the year of 2013, 7,526 shares were granted. The estimated fair value of each share
granted in this plan is USD12.03, which is equal to the share price at the date of the grant.
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WRITE BACK OF LOSSES ON LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for loans, advances and financing
Individual assessment allowance:
- made during the financial year (192) (68)
- written back during the financial year 131 58
Collective assessment allowance:
- written back during the financial 280 520
Bad debts on loans, advances and financing:
- recovered 150 65
- written off 9) -
360 575

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Related parties and relationships

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank are as follows:

Related parties

Bank of America Corporation

Bank America International Financial

Corporation

Bank of America National Association

- New York Branch

Bank of America Nationa! Association

- Charlotte Branch

Bank of America National Association

- 8an Francisco Branch

Bank of America National Association

- Labuan Branch

. Bank of America National Association

- Singapore Branch

Bank of America National Association

- London Branch

Bank of America National Association

- Canada Branch

Relationship

Ultimate holding company

Immediate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Related parties and relationships (continued)

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank are as follows (continued):

Related parties

Bank of America National Association
- Bangkok Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Jakarta Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Mumbai Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Sydney Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Tokyo Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Hong Kong Branch

Smith Zain (Penang) Sdn. Bhd.

Merrill Lynch International

Merrill Lynch International Bank Limited
Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited

Key management personnel

Related parties of key management
personnel (deemed as related to the
Bank)

Relationship

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of the ultimate holding company
Subsidiary of the ultimate holding company
Subsidiary of the ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of the ultimate holding company

The key management personnel
of the Bank consists of:

(i) All Directors of the Bank
(ify Senior management of the Bank

(i) Close family members and
dependents of key management
personnel

(i) Entities that are controlled, jointly

controlled or significantly influenced by,
or for which significant voting power in

such entity resides with, directly or

indirectly by key management personnel

or its close family members
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Significant related party balances and transactions
A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course

of business. The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the financial
year end, and the corresponding expense and income for the financial year are as follows:

Key Other
management related
personnel companies
RM’000 RM’000
2013
Income
Interest on deposits and placements
with other financial institutions 230
Interest on loans, advances and financing 10 -
Management fee - 322
Other fee income - 1,223
Reimbursement of information technology expenses - 194
10 1,969
Expenditure
Interest on deposits and placements
of banks and other financial institutions - 823
Interest on deposits from customers - 349
Management fee - 15,541
- 16,713
Amount due from
Deposits and placements - 14,528
Loans, advances and financing 361 -
Interest receivable - 4
Other receivables - 1,028
361 15,560
Amount due to
Deposits and placements 879,030
Interest payable 38
Other payables 2,504
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Significant related party balances and transactions (continued)
Key
management
personnel
RM’000
2012
Income

Interest on deposits and placements
with other financial institutions
Interest on loans, advances and financing
Management fee
Other fee income

Reimbursement of information technology expenses

Expenditure

Interest on deposits and placements

of banks and other financial institutions
Interest on deposits from customers
Management fee

Amount due from

Deposits and placements
Loans, advances and financing
Interest receivable

Amount due to

Deposits and placements
Interest payable

Approved limit

The approved limit on loans, advances and financing

for key management personnel

11

388

388

Other
related

companies
RM’000

306,218

o

306,226

544,800
50

544,850
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel

The aggregate remuneration paid to key management personnel are as follows:

2013
RM'000

Short-term employee benefits:
Fees 150
Salary and other remuneration 8,785
Benefits-in-kind -
8,935

2012
RM’000

108
2,888
2

2,998

The above remuneration includes Directors remuneration as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial

statements.

TAXATION
2013
RM'000

Malaysian income tax:

Current year 5,328
Over provision of prior years taxation (242)
Deferred taxation (Note 8) (1,649)
Tax charge for the financial year 3,437

Reconciliation between tax charge and the Malaysian tax rate is as follows:

2013

RM’000

Profit before taxation 13,803
Tax calculated at rate of 25% (2012: 25%) 3,451

Income not subject to tax (519)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 747
Under provision of deferred taxation in prior years -

Over provision of prior years’ taxation (242)

Tax expense for the financial year : 3,437

2012
RM’000

4,281
(759)
(332)

3,190

2012
RM’000

11,124

2,783
(3)

613

556
(759)

3,190
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a
result of these transactions.

The commitments and contingencies constitute the followings:

2013 2012

Principal Principal

amount amount

Description RM’000 RM’000

Direct credit substitutes 45,473 52,208

Transaction related contingent Items : 23,325 22,976

Short-term self liquidating trade related contingencies 1,022 1,438
Foreign exchange related contracts:

One year or less 2,970,058 2,175,436

Over one year to five years 146,981 -
Interest/profit rate related contracts:

One year or less 200,000 -

Over one year to five years 1,435,790 -

Over five years 30,000 -

Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit fines, with an original

maturity of up to one year 406,901 324,389
Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit lines, with an original

maturity of over one year 20 -
Any commitments that are unconditionally cancelled at

any time by the Bank without prior notice or that effectively

provide for automatic cancellation due to deterioration in a

borrower’s creditworthiness 1,110 -

Total 5,260,680 2,576,447
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share has been calculated based on net profit for the financial year of
RM10,366,183 (2012: RM7,934,111) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the financial year of RM135,800,000 (2012: RM135,800,000).

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are as follows:
2013 2012
RM’000 RM'000
Core Equity | (“CET I") Capital and Tier | Capital
Share capital 135,800 135,800
Retained profits 239,879 232,105
Other disclosed reserves
- Statutory reserve 130,949 128,357
- Unrealised gains and losses on available-for-sale
financial instruments 1,017 -
507,645 496,262
Less: regulatory adjustments :
- Deferred tax assets (285) -
- 55% of cumulative gains of available-for-sale
financial instruments (560) -
Total CET | and Tier | capital 506,800 496,262
Tier-1l Capital
Collective assessment allowance * 255 539
Total capital 507,055 496,801

* Excludes collective assessment allowance on impaired loans restricted from Tier-Il Capital of the
Bank of RM73,511 (2012: RM70,350).

Capital ratios

2013 201
CET | capital ratio 53.417% N/A
Tier | capital ratio 53.417% 59.027%

Total capital ratio 53.444% 59.091%



28

Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

Effective from 1 January 2013, the total capital and capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are
computed in accordance with BNM’s Capital Adequacy Framework (Capital Components and
Basel-ll Risk-Weighted Assets) guidelines issued on 28 November 2012. The Bank has adopted
the Standardised Approach (“SA”) for Credit Risk and Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach
(“BIA”) for Operational Risk.

The comparative capital adequacy ratios and total capital are computed in accordance with BNM’s
revised Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Framework (“RWCAF”) (Basel II).

Detailed disclosures pursuant to the requirements of BNM RWCAF (Basel Il) — Disclosure
Requirements (Pillar 3), in addition to those set out in Notes 28(a), (b), and (c) to the financial
statements, have been made in a separate Pillar 3 Disclosures Report.

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets in the various categories of risk-weights:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Risk- Risk-
Principal weighted Principal weighted
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
(i) Credit risk
0% 2,211,603 - 1,142,835 -
20% 441,376 88,275 349,029 69,806
35% 495 173 624 218
50% 74,154 37,077 28,558 14,279
75% 336 252 610 458
100% 268,308 268,308 264,125 264,125
2,996,272 394,085 1,785,781 348,886
(i) Market risk - 439,647 - 396,945
(ii) Operational risk - 115,036 - 94,904

2,996,272 948,768 1,785,781 840,735
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(a) The breakdown of the Bank’s risk-weighted assets (“RWA”) by exposures is as follows:
Risk
2013 Gross Net weighted Capital
Exposure class Exposures exposures assets requirements
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
Credit risk
On-balance sheet exposures:
Sovereigns/central banks 2,210,815 2,210,815 - -
Banks, Development Financial
Institutions (“DFls”) and
Multilateral Development
Banks (“MDBs") 396,294 396,294 79,259 6,341
Corporates 111,749 111,749 111,749 8,940
Residential mortgages 871 871 446 36
Other assets 14,902 14,902 14,171 1,134
Defaulted exposures 171 171 168 13
Total on-balance sheet exposures 2,734,802 2,734,802 205,793 16,464
Off-balance sheet exposures:
OTC derivatives 124,077 124,077 57,375 4,590
Off-balance sheet exposures
other than OTC derivatives or
credit derivatives 138,730 137,393 130,917 10,473
Total off-balance sheet exposures 262,807 261,470 188,292 15,063
Total on and off-balance sheet
exposures 2,997,609 2,996,272 394,085 31,627
. Long Short
Market risk position position
RM’000 RM’000
Foreign currency risk 3,881 87,352 87,352 6,988
Interest rate risk - 352,295 28,184
Total market risk exposure 439,647 35,172
Operational risk 115,036 9,203
Total RWA and capital
requirements 948,768 75,902
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(a) The breakdown of the Bank’s risk-weighted assets (“RWA”) by exposures is as follows:
{continued)
Risk
2012 Gross Net weighted Capital
Exposure class Exposures exposures assets reguirements
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
Credit risk
On-balance sheet exposures:
Sovereigns/central banks 1,140,662 1,140,662 - -
Banks, Development Financial
Institutions (“DFIs”) and
Multilateral Development
Banks ("MDBs") 347,189 347,189 69,815 5,585
Corporates 135,563 135,563 129,081 10,326
Residential mortgages 1,292 1,292 705 56
Other assets 15,058 15,058 12,885 1,031
Defaulted exposures 182 182 178 14
Total on-balance sheet exposures 1,639,946 1,639,946 212,664 17,012
Off-balance sheet exposures:
OTC derivatives 18,039 18,039 14,523 1,162
Off-balance sheet exposures
other than OTC derivatives or
credit derivatives 128,861 127,796 121,699 9,736
Total off-balance sheet exposures 146,900 145,835 136,222 10,898
Total on and off-balance sheet
exposures 1,786,846 1,785,781 348,886 27,910
. Long Short
Market risk position position
RM’'000 RM'000
Foreign currency risk 3,499 167,815 167,815 13,425
Interest rate risk 229,130 18,330
Total market risk exposure 396,945 31,755
Operational risk 94,904 7,592
Total RWA and capital
requirements 840 735 R7 2R7
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(b)  The breakdown of the Bank’s credit risk exposures by risk weights is as follows:

2013
Risk weights

0%
20%
35%
50%
75%

100%

Total
exposures

Risk weighted
assets by
exposure
Average risk
weight
Deduction
from capital
base

Exposures after netting and credit risk mitigation (RM’000)

Banks, ex| os.ll-Jc::aasl
Development p after
Financial nettin
Public Institutions Higher ng
Sovereigns/ Sector and Residential risk Other cre diterlisk
Central banks Entities MDBs Corporates mortgages assets assets Equity mitiqation
2,210,872 - - - - - 731 - 2,211,603
- - 441,376 - - - - - 441,376
- - - - 495 - - - 495
- - 74,100 - 54 - - - 74,154
- - - - 336 - - - 336
- - - 253,970 167 - 14,171 - 268,308
2,210,872 - 515,476 253,970 1,052 - 14,902 - 2,996,272
- - 125,325 253,970 619 - 14,171 -
0.00% 0.00% 24.31% 100.00% 58.84% 0.00% 95.09% 0.00%

57

Total risk
weighted

assets

88,275
173
37,077
252
268,308

394,085

13.15%



28

Company No:

310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(b) The breakdown of the Bank’s credit risk exposures by risk weights is as follows: (continued)

2012
Risk weights

0%
20%
35%
50%
75%
100%

Total
exposures

Risk weighted
assets by
exposure
Average risk
weight
Deduction
from capital
base

Exposures after netting and credit risk mitigation (RM’000)

Banks Total
Development ex pos:frtee:?
Financial nettin
Public Institutions Higher ang
Sovereigns/ Sector and Residential risk Other credit risk
Central banks Entities MDBs  Corporates  mortgages assets assets Equity mitiqation
1,140,662 - - - - - 2,173 - 1,142,835
- - 347,439 1,590 - - - - 349,029
- - - - 624 - - - 624
- - 18,072 10,421 65 - - - 28,558
- - - - 610 - - - 610
- - - 251,065 175 - 12,885 - 264,125
1,140,662 - 365,511 263,076 1,474 - 15,058 - 1,785,781
- - 78,524 256,594 883 - 12,885 -
0.00% 0.00% 21.48% 97.54% 59.91% 0.00% 85.57% 0.00%

58

Total risk
weighted
assets

69,806
218
14,279
458
264,125

348,886

19.54%
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(c) The Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are
as follows:
Positive
fair value
of Credit Risk
2013 Principal deri\':ati\f[e equivalent weighted
L amount contracts amount* assets
Description RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Direct credit substitutes 45,473 - 45,473 41,216
Transaction related contingent items 23,325 - 11,663 8,167
Short term self liquidating trade related
contingencies 1,022 - 204 204
Foreign exchange related contracts
One year or less 2,970,058 24,513 74,666 36,299
Over one year to five years 146,981 1,446 8,795 6,591
Interest/profit related contracts '
One year or less 200,000 149 649 130
Over one year to five years 1,435,790 4,210 37,257 13,813
Over five years 30,000 10 2,710 542

Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit lines, with an original

maturity of up to one year 406,901 - 81,380 81,323
Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit lines, with an original

maturity of over one year 20 - 10 7
Any commitments that are unconditionally

cancelled at any time by the Bank without prior

notice or that effectively provide for automatic

cancellation due to deterioration in a borrower’s

creditworthiness 1,110 - - -

Total 5,260,680 30,328 262,807 188,292
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

()

The Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are
as follows: (continued)

Positive
fair value
of Credit Risk
31.12.2012 Principal derivative equivalen} weighted
. amount contracts amount assets
Description RM'000 RM000 RM’000 RM’000
Direct credit substitutes 52,208 - 52,208 47,021
Transaction related contingent items 22,976 - 11,488 9,629
Short term self liquidating trade related
contingencies 1,438 - 287 171
Foreign exchange related contracts '
One year or less 2,175,436 3,966 18,039 14,523
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of up to one year 324,389 - 64,878 64,878
Total 2,576,447 3,966 146,900 136,222

*

(d)

The credit equivalent amount is arrived at using the credit conversion factor as per Bank Negara
Malaysia Guidelines.

The Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are
as follows:

In the normal course of business, the Bank make various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities with legal recourse to their customers. No material losses are
anticipated as a result of these transactions.

Nature of commitments and contingencies

Direct credit substitutes comprise guarantees undertaken by the Bank to support the
financial obligations of their customers to third parties.

Certain transactions related contingent items represent financial products whose
crystallisations are dependent on specific events other than default payment by the
customers. They include performance related contingencies and standby letter of credit.

Short-term self liquidating trade-related contingencies relate to bills of exchange which
have been endorsed by the Bank and represent liabilities in the event of default by the
acceptors and the drawers of the bills.

Foreign exchange related contracts are agreements or options to buy or sell fixed amounts
of currency at agreed rates of exchange on a specified future date.
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USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The financial risk management objectives and policies of Bank of America Malaysia Berhad
(“BAMB”) are managed by the various risk committees within BAMB, and are guided by the Risk
Framework of its ultimate holding company, Bank of America Corporation (“BAC”).

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that value of assets and liabilities or revenues will be adversely affected by
changes in market conditions.

Market risk is inherent in BAMB’s operations and arises from both trading and non-trading
positions. Trading exposures represent positions taken in a wide range of financial instruments
and markets which expose BAMB to various risks, such as interest rate and foreign exchange.
BAMB manages these risks by using trading strategies and other hedging actions which
encompass a variety of financial instruments in both the cash and derivatives markets. Non-trading

- exposures arise from its Corporate Treasury activities, as part of International Treasury, as a

conseguence of the mismatch of assets and liabilities in the banking book. Corporate Treasury is
also exposed to market risk as a consequence of its use of derivatives to mitigate the risks
associated from this mismatch.

BAMB uses Value-At-Risk (VaR) as one key risk measure to evaluate the risks in its trading
activities. VaR represents the potential market value loss resulting from changes in market
variables, during a given holding period, measured at a specified confidence level. It reflects the
volatility of the positions in the portfolio and how strongly the risks are correlated. VaR is subject
to trading limits within an individual business and all limit excesses are communicated to senior
management for review.

BAMB’s VaR is based on its own internal VaR model. It is a Historical Simulation based model
and uses 3 years of historical market data at the 99% confidence level. The VaR model is
designed to take into account various market risk factors such as interest rate, spreads, equity
price, foreign exchange rate, commodity price and volatility.

In order to supplement the VaR measure, BAMB also uses stress testing to estimate the value
change in the trading portfolio that may result from extreme, though plausible, market movements.
Within BAMB, stress tests are run for both historical and hypothetical scenarios and the results are
presented to senior management as part of the regular reporting process.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the inability or failure of a borrower or counterparty to
meet its obligations.

BAC manages credit risk based on the risk profile of the borrower or counterparty, repayment
sources, the nature of underlying collateral, and other supports given current events, conditions
and expectations. Credit risk management starts with an assessment of the credit risk profile of
the borrower or counterparty based on an analysis of their financial position. As part of the overall
credit risk assessment of a borrower or counterparty, credit exposures are assigned a risk rating
and are subject to approval based on defined credit approval standards. Subsequent to approving
credit limits, risk ratings are monitored on an ongoing basis. If necessary, risk ratings are adjusted
to reflect changes in the financial condition, cash flow or financial situation of a borrower or
counterparty. The credit underwriting and monitoring of BAMB is in line with BAC’s global Core
Credit Policy.

Risk Management, as well as supporting units, is responsible for the ongoing management and

administration of credit risk at the borrower level by:

e  Monitoring borrower risk ratings on an ongoing basis, and if necessary, adjusting to reflect
changes in the financial condition, cash flow, risk profile or outlook of a borrower or
counterparty;

e  Monitoring performance by updating the customer analysis and reviewing periodically;
Monitoring collateral;

e Undertaking periodic portfolio reviews to ensure management is aware of borrower specific
trends for a given portfolio;

e Recognizing developing problems and promptly bringing them to the attention of
management;

e  Taking prompt corrective action on past due and non-accrual loans; and

e  Maintaining proper credit file documentation and determining compliance with all loan
covenants periodically.

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the potential inability to meet contractual and contingent financial obligations, on- or
off-balance sheet, as they come due. The primary liquidity risk management objective is to
develop a strategy and execution plan to ensure BAMB can meet contractual and contingent
financial obligations through market cycles and periods of liquidity stress. With the BAMB Liquidity
Risk Policy and Contingency Funding Plan, BAMB will ensure that adequate internal governance,
controls, systems and risk management practices are employed to manage this liquidity risk.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liguidity risk management (continued)

BAMB has in place the following liquidity risk mitigation:

e The liquidity policy and the contingency funding plan are in place and reviewed at least
annually;

e  Set limit or guideline structures are in place and monitored daily;

e Local governance is provided through the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”), which
meets on a bi-monthly basis and is provided with regular updates on market conditions and
liquidity-related reporting;

e  Liquidity stress tests are conducted regularly, both for regulatory purposes but also for
internal stress-testing; and

. Established internal control and reporting processes with support partners are in place.

Operational risk management

BAC defines operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people, and systems, or from external events. BAC classifies Operational Risk using
the Basel Il Categories and definitions as follows: Internal Fraud, External Fraud, Employment
Practices and Workplace Safety, Clients, Products, and Business Practices, Damage to Physical
Assets, Business Disruption and System Failures, Execution, Delivery, and Process Management.

BAMB has a robust operational risk management framework. Within BAMB, the Local
Management Team (“LMT”) is responsible for monitoring the Malaysia business operations. Each
Line of Business (“LOB”), which are represented within the LMT, are responsible for all the risks
within the business including operational risks. Operational risk are managed through corporate-
wide or LOB specific policies and procedures, controls, and monitoring tools. Examples of these
include data reconciliation processes, fraud prevention, transaction processing monitoring and
analysis and business recovery planning.
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Interest rate risk

The tables below summarise the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net notional amounts of all interest rate
sensitive derivative financial instruments. As interest rates and yield curves change over time the Bank may be exposed to a loss in earnings due to the
effects of interest rates on the structure of the balance sheet. Sensitivity to interest rates arises from mismatches in the repricing dates, cash flows and
other characteristics of the assets and their corresponding liability funding.

Non-
2013 Up to >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over interest Trading
1 month months months years 5 years bearing book Total
Assets RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cash and short-term funds 2,501,735 - - - - 11,424 - 2,513,159
Deposits and placements with banks - - - - - - - -
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) - - - - - - 573,520 573,520
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 70,826 13,954 - - - 2,995 - 87,775
Loans, advances and financing 98,624 5,853 106 7,800 1,431 (1,160)7 - 112,654
Statutory deposit with
Bank Negara Malaysia - - - - - 2,300 - 2,300
Other assets - - - - - 3,773 2,697 6,470
Derivative assets - - - - - - 31,905 31,905
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,941 - 7,941
Tax recoverable - - - - - 4,174 - 4,174
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 285 - 285
Total assets 2,671,185 19,807 106 7,800 1,431 31,732 608,122 3,340,183

A The negative balance represents individual assessment allowance and collective assessment allowance for loans, advances and financing in
accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy on allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing.
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Interest rate risk (continued)

2013

Liabilities

Deposits from customers
Deposits and placements

of banks and other

financial institutions
Bills and acceptances payable
Other liabilities
Derivative liabilities

Total liabilities

On-balance sheet - interest rate gap

Non-
Upto >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over interest Trading

1 month months months years 5 years bearing book Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
726,511 418,756 83,814 231 - 659,019 - 1,888,331
864,507 5,053 - - - 8,294 - ‘877,854
- - - - - 19,111 - 19,111
- - - - - 9,889 15,197 25,086
- - - - - - 22,156 22,156
1,591,018 423,809 83,814 231 - 696,313 37,353 2,832,538

1,080,167 (404,002) (83,708) 7,569 1,431
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Interest rate risk (continued)

Non-
2012 Upto >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over interest Trading
1 month months months years 5 years bearing book Total
Assets RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
Cash and short-term funds 1,313,523 - - - - 13,838 - 1,327,361
Deposits and placements with banks - 989 - - - - - 989
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) - - - - - - 605,456 605,456
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 49,881 36,509 29,753 - - 4,759 - 120,902
Loans, advances and financing 14,838 97,106 49,194 15,027 2,094 (1,379)7 - 176,880
Statutory deposit with
Bank Negara Malaysia - - - - - 2,300 - 2,300
Other assets - - - - - 699 » - 699
Derivative assets - - - - - - 4,384 4,384
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,809 - 7,809
Tax recoverable - - - - - 2,396 - 2,396
Total assets 1,378,242 134,604 78,947 15,027 2,094 30,422 609,840 2,249,176

A The negative balance represents individual assessment allowance and collective assessment allowance for loans, advances and financing in
accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy on allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing.
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Interest rate risk (continued)

Non-
2012 Upto >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over interest Trading
1 month months months years 5 years bearing book Total

Liabilities RM’000 RM000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000
Deposits from customers 540,681 58,975 3,274 1,281 - 529,903 - 1,134,114
Deposits and placements '

of banks and other 500,925 64,364 - - - 12,364 - 577,653

financial institutions
Bills and acceptances payable - - - - - 22,249 - 22,249
Other liabilities - - - - - 7,961 1,837 9,798
Derivative liabilities - - - - - - 5,145 5,145
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 1,758 - 1,758
Total liabilities 1,041,606 123,339 3,274 1,281 - 574,235 6,982 1,750,717

On-balance sheet - interest rate gap 336,636 11,265 75,673 13,746 2,094
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Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarises the effective average interest rates by major currency for each class
of financial assets and financial liabilities:

31.12.2013
MYR UsbD GBP EUR AUD
% % % % %
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 3.00 0.45 0.45 - 2.39
Deposits and placements with banks - - - - -
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT) 3.30 - - - -
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 2.96 - - - -
Loans, advances and financing 4.02 3.25 - - -
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2.77 0.17 0.35 - 2.00
Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 2.75 0.11 - - -
, 31.12.2012
MYR Usb GBP EUR AUD
% % % % %
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 3.00 0.05 0.40 - 2.90
Deposits and placements with banks - - 0.40 - -
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) 3.76 - - - -
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 3.04 - - - -
Loans, advances and financing 4.94 1.17 - - -

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 2.64 0.15 0.33 - 2.38
Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 2.55 0.17 - - -
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its cash flow obligations as they fall due,
such as upon the maturity of deposits and loan draw downs.

It is unusual for any bank to completely match the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities as
business transacted is often of uncertain terms and of different types. Therefore, controlled
mismatching of the maturities of assets and liabilities is fundamental to prudent liquidity risk
management of the Bank.

The Bank closely monitors its liquidity risk profile with a variety of tools which includes cash flow
forecasts and maturity mismatch reports. For Malaysian Ringgit in particular, the Bank has
established funding guidelines on the amount of external funding it obtains and conducts regular
stress-testing to ensure that it will be able to meet its obligations when they come due.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of assets and liabilities

The table below analyses assets and liabilities (including non-financial instruments) of the Bank based on the remaining contractual maturity in accordance
with the requirements of BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Banking Institutions:

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over1  No specific
1 week 1 month months months months year maturity Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 2,347,882 165,277 - - - - - 2,513,159
Deposits and placements
with banks - - - - - - - -
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) - 324,889 9,501 50,712 702 187,716 - 573,520
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) - 70,826 13,954 - - 15 2,980 87,775
Loans, advances and financing 42,689 55,724 5,818 67 3 8,353 - 112,654
Statutory deposit with
Bank Negara Malaysia - - - - - - 2,300 2,300
Other assets* - - - - - - 18,870 18,870
Derivative assets 2,298 541 8,201 1,139 13,599 6,127 - 31,905
2,392,869 617,257 37,474 51,918 14,304 202,211 24,150 3,340,183

* Includes tax recoverable, deferred tax assets, property, plant and equipment, and other assets.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of assets and liabilities (continued)

The table below analyses assets and liabilities (including non-financial instruments) of the Bank based on the remaining contractual maturity in accordance
with the requirements of BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Banking Institutions (continued):

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over 1  No specific
1 week 1 month months months months year maturity Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,235,854 148,263 417,008 84,077 1,485 1,644 - 1,888,331
Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 534,615 338,186 5,053 - - - - 877,854
Bills and acceptances payable 19,111 - - - - - - 19,111
Other liabilities - - - - - - 25,086 25,086
Derivative liabilities 609 10,033 1,626 4,602 2,017 3,269 - 22,156
1,790,189 496,482 423,687 88,679 3,502 4,913 25,086 2,832,538
Net liquidity gap 602,680 120,775 (386,213) (36,761) 10,802 197,298 (936)

A Includes deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities.
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Liguidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of assets and liabilities (continued)

The table below analyses assets and liabilities (including non-financial instruments) of the Bank based on the remaining contractual maturity in accordance
with the requirements of BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Banking Institutions (continued):

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over1  No specific
1 week 1 month months months months year maturity Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
2012
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 1,321,149 6,212 - - - - - 1,327,361
Deposits and placements
with banks - - 989 - - - - 989
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) - - - 1,477 - 603,979 - 605,456
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) - 49,881 36,509 29,753 - 15 4,744 120,902
Loans, advances and financing 3,295 11,438 96,659 32,641 16,416 16,431 - 176,880
Statutory deposit with
Bank Negara Malaysia - - - - - - 2,300 2,300
Other assets™ - - - - - - 10,904 10,904
Derivative assets 438 961 841 1,451 693 - - 4,384
1,324,882 68,492 134,998 65,322 17,109 620,425 17,948 2,249,176

*

Includes tax recoverable, property, plant and equipment, and other assets.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of assets and liabilities (continued)

The table below analyses assets and liabilities (including non-financial instruments) of the Bank based on the remaining contractual maturity in accordance
with the requirements of BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Banking Institutions (continued):

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over 1 No specific
1 week 1 month months months months ~_year maturity Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2012
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 841,643 228,940 58,975 1,839 1,436 1,281 - 1,134,114
Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 488,601 24,689 64,363 - - - - 577,653
Bills and acceptances payable 22,249 - - - - - - 22,249
Other liabilities? - - - - - - 11,556 11,556
Derivative liabilities 810 941 1,782 449 1,163 - - 5,145
1,353,303 254,570 125,120 2,288 2,599 1,281 11,556 1,750,717
Net liquidity gap (28,421) (186,078) 9,878 63,034 14,510 619,144 6,392

A Includes deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities.
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Liguidity risk (continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The tables below analyses the Bank’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining contractual maturities at

the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3 -6 >6-12 Over1  No specific
1 week 1 month months months months year maturity Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,235,858 148,520 419,205 84,869 1,519 1,644 - 1,891,615
Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions 534,616 338,217 5,073 - - - - 877,906
Bills and acceptances payable 19,111 - - - - - - 19,111
Other liabilities” - - - - - - 18,208 18,208
1,789,585 486,737 424,278 84,869 1,519 1,644 18,208 2,806,840

A Excludes accruals and unearned discount on loans, advances and financing.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

Upto >1weekto >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over1  No specific
1 week 1 month months months months __year maturity Total
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000
2012
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 833,642 23,883 259,958 10,374 207 6,556 - 1,134,620
Deposits and placements of banks '
and other financial institutions 467,844 45,462 49 64,342 - - - 577,697
Bills and acceptances payable 22,249 - - - - - - 22,249
Other liabilities? - - - - - - 7,280 7,280
1,323,735 69,345 260,007 74,716 207 6,556 7,280 1,741,846

A Excludes accruals and unearned discount on loans, advances and financing.
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Liguidity risk (continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

The following table presents the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s commitment and
contingencies:

One year Over one
or less year Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013

Direct credit substitutes 27,590 17,883 45,473
Transaction related contingent items 13,108 10,217 23,325

Short-term self liquidating trade related
contingencies 1,022 - 1,022

Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit lines, with an original ’

maturity of up to one year 406,901 - 406,901
Other commitments, such as formal standby

facilities and credit lines, with an original

maturity of over one year - 20 20
Any commitments that are unconditionally

cancelled at any time by the bank, without prior

notice or that effectively provide for automatic

cancellation due to deterioration in a

borrower’s creditworthiness 1,110 - 1,110
449,731 28,120 477,851
2012
Direct credit substitutes 27,333 24,875 52,208
Transaction related contingent items 15,897 7,079 22,976
Short-term self liquidating trade related
contingencies 1,438 - 1,438

Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of up to one year 324,389 - 324,389

369,057 31,954 401,011
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivative financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Bank’s derivative financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

2013
Gross-settled derivatives:
Forwards and swaps
Receipts
Payments

Interest rate and cross currency swaps
Receipts
Payments

Up to >1 week to >1-3 >3 -6 >6-12 Over 1
1 week 1 month months months months year Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
867,448 215,345 358,304 270,531 1,175,956 201,485 3,089,069
(866,684) (225,075) (351,885) (274,594) (1,178,428) (200,564) (3,097,230)
764 (9,730) 6,419 (4,063) (2,472) 921 (8,161)
- 325 13,351 14,055 28,951 192,167 248,849
- (320) (13,717) (14,052) (28,696) (189,623) (246,408)
- 5 (366) 3 255 2,644 2,441
764 (9,725) 6,053 (4,060) (2,217) 3,465 (5,720)
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Liquidity risk {continued)

Derivative financial liabilities (continued)

Upto >1 week to >1-3 >3-6 >6-12 Over 1
1 week 1 month months months months year Total
RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
2012
Gross-settled derivatives:
Forwards and swaps
Receipts 1,452,232 77,247 228,276 197,379 213,010 - 2,168,144
Payments (1,452,456) (77,213) (229,714) (196,176) (213,930) - (2,169,489)
(224) 34 (1,438) 1,203 (920) - (1,345)
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Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to earnings and value of financial instruments caused by the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. It is managed in conjunction
with market risk.

The table below sets out the Bank’s exposure to currency risk. Included in the table are the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

2013 MYR USD SGD GBP AUD Others Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000

Assets '
Cash and short-term funds 2,119,562 379,660 1,506 2,485 5,355 4,591 2,513,159
Deposits and placements with banks - - - - - - -
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) 573,520 - - - - - 573,520
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 87,775 - - - - - 87,775
Loans, advances and financing® 112,515 139 - - - - 112,654
Other assets* 2,766 3,664 - - - - 6,430
Derivative assets 31,905 - - - - - 31,905
Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia 2,300 - - - - - 2,300
2,930,343 383,463 1,506 2,485 5,355 4,591 3,327,743

A This represents outstanding loans, advances and financing after deducting individual assessment allowance and collective assessment allowance.

* This represents other receivables.
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Currency risk (continued)

2013

L

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of

banks and other financial institutions
Bills and acceptances payable

Other liabilities®

Derivative liabilities

iabilities

Currency gap

@

This represents other payables.

MYR UsD SGD GBP AUD Others Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
1,396,591 481,801 282 1,704 5,193 2,760 1,888,331
22,552 855,302 - - - - 877,854
18,094 1,017 - - - - 19,111
433 17,701 4 38 32 - 18,208
22,156 - - - - - 22,156
1,459,826 1,355,821 286 1,742 5,225 2,760 2,825,660
1,470,517 (972,358) 1,220 743 130 1,831

80



29

Company No.

310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Currency risk (continued)

2012 MYR USD SGD GBP AUD Others Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Cash and short-term funds 1,021,915 287,787 1,936 3,991 4,647 7,085 1,327,361
Deposits and placements with banks - - - 989 - - 989
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) 605,456 - - - - - 605,456
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 120,902 - - - - - 120,902
Loans, advances and financing” 97,095 79,785 - - - - 176,880
Other assets* 31 373 - - - - 404
Derivative assets 4,384 - - - - - 4,384
Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia 2,300 - - - - - 2,300
1,852,083 367,945 1,936 4,980 4,647 7,085 2,238,676

A This represents outstanding loans, advances and financing after deducting individual assessment allowance and collective assessment allowance.

* This represents other receivables.
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USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Currency risk (continued)

2012 MYR USD SGD GBP AUD Others Total
RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 826,134 295,780 809 3,778 4,613 3,000 1,134,114

Deposits and placements of

banks and other financial institutions 56,732 520,880 - - - 41 577,653

Bills and acceptances payable 21,140 1,109 - - - - 22,249

Other liabilities® 4,547 1,837 821 60 - 15 7,280

Derivative liabilities 5,145 - - - - - 5,145
913,698 819,606 1,630 3,838 4,613 3,056 1,746,441

Currency gap 938,385 (451,661) 306 1,142 34 4,029

This represents other payables.
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Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement
of financial position, including derivative financial instruments.

The maximum exposure is shown gross, without taking account of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements.

Note 2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Cash and short-term funds 2 2,512,429 1,325,189
Deposits and placements with banks - 989
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’) 3 573,520 605,456
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’) 4 84,795 116,158
Loans, advances and financing” 5 112,654 176,880
Other assets 6,430 404
Derivative assets 7 31,905 4,384
Total assets™ 3,321,733 2,229,460
Commitments and contingencies 5,260,680 2,576,447
Total credit exposure 8,582,413 4,805,907

A Net of collective impairment and individual impairment of RM1,160,487 (2012: RM1,378,885).
*  Excludes cash in hand, unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.

Commitments and contingencies are based on the principal amounts in Note 28(c).

Where financial instruments are recorded by fair value, the amounts shown above represent the
current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a
result of changes in values.

Collaterals

The main types of collaterals obtained by the Bank are as follows:

(@ Cash
(b) Fixed deposits
(c) Residential properties

The Bank also accepts non-tangible securities such as support, guarantees from corporate and
institutions which are subject to internal guidelines on eligibility.
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USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration risk by geographical sectors

Credit risk exposure analysed by country in respect of the Bank’s financial assets, including off-balance sheet financial instruments, are set out in the

following table.

The country exposure analysis is based on the residency of the borrowers and counterparties. In respect of derivatives financial instruments, the amount
subject to, and hence disclosed as, credit risk is limited to the current fair value of the instruments that are favourable to the Bank (i.e. assets).

Deposits - Securities Securities Loans,

Cash and and held-for available- advances On Commitments Total

short-term  placements trading for-sale and Other Derivative balance and credit

funds with banks (HFT") (‘fAFS") financing? assets assets sheet total* contingencies  exposure

2013 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Malaysia 2,497,797 - 573,520 84,795 112,654 2,766 29,709 3,301,241 4,926,500 8,227,741
United States 1,278 - - - - 3,664 1,669 6,611 111,702 118,313
India 50 - - - - - - 50 - 50
Singapore 5,473 - - - - - - 5,473 606 6,079
Others 7,831 - - - - - 527 8,358 221,872 230,230
2,512,429 - 573,520 84,795 = 112,654 6,430 31,905 5,260,680 8,582,413

A Net of collective assessment allowance and individual assessment allowance of RM1,160,487

*

Commitments and contingencies are based on the principal amounts in Note 28(c).

Excludes cash in hand, unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.
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Credit risk (continued)

Concentration risk by geographical sectors (continued)

Deposits  Securities Securities Loans,

Cash and and held-for available- advances On Commitments Total

short-term  placements trading for-sale and Other Derivative balance and credit

funds with banks (‘HFT) (‘AFS’) financing? assets assets sheet total* contingencies  exposure

2012 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Malaysia 1,307,600 - 605,456 116,158 137,341 31 4,254 2,170,840 2,071,695 4,242 535
United States - - - - - 373 14 387 25,372 25,759
India 2 - - - 39,539 - - 39,541 - 39,541
Singapore 6,005 - - - - - 26 6,031 89,316 95,347
Others 11,582 989 - - - - 90 12,661 390,064 402,725
1,325,189 989 605,456 116,158 176,880 404 4,384 2,229,460 2,576,447 4,805,907

A Net of collective assessment allowance and individual assessment allowance of RM1,378,885
*  Excludes cash in hand, unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.

Commitments and contingencies are based on the principal amounts in Note 28(c).
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Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risk by economic sectors

Cash Deposits Securities Securities
and and held-for- available- Commitments Total
short-term  placements trading for-sale Loans and Other Derivative On-balance and credit
funds _ with banks (‘HFT") (‘AFS’) _advances” assets assets _sheet total* contingencies exposure
2013 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Mining and quarrying - - - - 139 - - 139 221 360
Manufacturing - - - - 83,456 - 2,513 85,969 1,012,359 1,098,328
General commerce - - - - 20,586 - 4 20,590 20,311 40,901
Finance, insurance and
business services 393,596 - - - 5,726 6,430 29,388 435,140 4,176,835 4,611,975
Government and
government agencies 2,118,833 - 573,520 84,795 713 - - 2,777,861 48,660 2,826,521
Construction - - - - - - - - 1,164 1,164
Purchase of residential
landed property, securities
and transport vehicles - - - - 1,923 - - 1,923 20 1,943
Others - - - - 111 - - 111 1,110 1,221
2,512,429 - 573,520 84,795 112,654 6,430 31,905 3,321,733 5,260,680 8,582,413

Net of collective assessment allowance and individual assessment allowance of RM1,160,487
*  Excludes cash in hand, unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.

Commitments and contingencies are based on the principal amounts in Note 28(c).
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Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risk by economic sectors (continued)

Cash Deposits  Securities Securities
and and held-for- available- Commitments Total
short-term  placements trading for-sale Loans and Other Derivative On-balance and credit
funds _ with banks (‘HFT) (‘AFS’) _advances® assets assets _sheet total* contingencies exposure
2012 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM000
Mining and quarrying - - - - 4,548 - - 4,548 27,184 31,732
Manufacturing - - - - 56,095 - 189 56,284 753,572 809,856
General commerce - - - - 58,847 - 5 58,852 76,232 135,084
Transport, storage and
communications - - - - - - - - 15,305 15,305
Finance, insurance and
business services 305,383 989 - - 54,711 - 4,190 365,273 1,703,889 2,069,162
Government and
government agencies 1,019,806 - 605,456 116,158 - - - 1,741,420 - 1,741,420
Education, health and others - - - - 57 - - 57 265 322
Purchase of residential :
landed property, securities
and transport vehicles - - - - 2,461 - - 2,461 - 2,461
Others - - - - 161 404 - 565 - 565
1,325,189 989 605,456 116,158 176,880 404 4,384 2,229,460 2,576,447 4,805,907

A Net of collective assessment allowance and individual assessment allowance of RM1,378,885
*  Excludes cash in hand, unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.

Commitments and contingencies are based on the principal amounts in Note 28(c).
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Credit risk (continued)

Loans, advances and financing

Loans, advances and financing are summarised as follows:

2013
RM’000
Neither past due nor impaired 112,541
Past due but not impaired 270
Individually impaired 1,003
Gross 113,814
Less: Allowance for losses on loans, advances
and financing:
- Individual assessment allowance (831)
- Collective assessment allowance (329)
Net 112,654
(a) Gross loans, advances, and financing neither past due nor impaired

2012
RM’000

176,922

385

952

178,259
(770)
(609)

176,880

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans, advances and financing that were neither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted by

the Bank.
Government Large
& corporate
Government agencies customers Staff loans Mortgages Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013
(RR1) — Exceptional - 133 - - 133
(RR2) — Excellent - 322 - - 322
(RR3) — Strong 713 49,132 - - 49,845
(RR4) — Good - 38,643 1,067 - 39,710
(RR5) — Satisfactory - - - - -
(RR86) — Acceptable - 21,778 - 601 22,379
Unrated - 152 - - 152
Total 713 110,160 1,067 601 112,541

*RR = Risk Rating
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Credit risk (continued)

Loans, advances and financing (continued)

(@)

(b)

Gross loans, advances and financing neither past due nor impaired (continued)

Large

corporate
customers  Staff loans  Mortgages Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2012

(RR1) - Exceptional 28 - - 28
(RR2) - Excellent 42,053 - - 42,053
(RR3) - Strong 5,042 - - 5,042
(RR4) - Good 56,679 1,223 - 57,902
(RR5) - Satisfactory - 1,409 - - 1,409
(RRB) - Acceptable 69,581 - 907 70,488
Total 174,792 1,223 907 176,922

*RR = Risk Rating
Gross loans, advances and financing past due but not impaired

Late processing and other administrative delays on the side of the borrower can lead to a
financial asset being past due but not impaired. Therefore, loans, advances and financing
less than 90 days past due not usually considered impaired, unless other information is
available to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans, advances and financing by
class to customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

Mortgages
RM’000
2013
Past due up to 30 days 204
Past due 30 - 60 days 66
Past due 60 - 90 days -
Past due more than 90 days -
Total 270
2012
Past due up to 30 days ' 233
Past due 30 - 60 days 114
Past due 60 - 90 days 38

Past due more than 90 days -

Total 385
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USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans, advances and financing (continued)

(c) Loans, advances and financing individually impaired

The breakdowns of the amount of individually impaired loans, advances and financing by
class are as follows:

Mortgages
RM’'000
2013
Gross impaired 1,003
Less: Individual allowance (831)
Net impaired 172
2012
Gross impaired 952

Less: Individual allowance (770)

Net impaired 182



29

Company No.

310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets

The table below presents an analysis of the credit quality of securities for the Bank by external
rating agency as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

Malaysian
Government Bank  Treasury Unquoted
Securities (“MGS”) Negara bills bills securities Total

RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2013
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’)
Sovereign rating (AAA to A-) - 19,949 64,831 15 84,795
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT?)
Sovereign rating (AAA to A-) 199,499 374,021 - - 573,520

199,499 393,970 64,831 15 658,315
2012
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’)
Sovereign rating (AAA to A-) - 116,143 - 15 116,158
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT?)
Sovereign rating (AAA to A-) 603,979 1,477 - - 605,456

603,979 117,620 - 15 721,614
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Market risk

Market risk sensitivity assessment is based on the changes in key variables, such as interest rates
and foreign currency rates, while all other variables remain unchanged. The sensitivity factors used
are assumptions based on parallel shifts in the key variables to project the impact on the assets
and liabilities position of the Bank as at 31 December 2013,

The scenarios used for the interest rate risk sensitivity analysis on banking book are as per Bank
Negara Malaysia guidelines on Reporting Requirements for Interest Rate/Rate of Return Risk in
the Banking Book issued on 30 October 2013.

The scenarios used are simplified whereby it is assumed that all key variables for all maturities
move at the same time and by the same magnitude and do not incorporate actions that would be
otherwise taken by risk management to mitigate the effect of this movement in key variables. In
reality, the Bank proactively seeks to ensure that the interest rate risk profile is managed to
minimise losses and optimise net revenues.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis on banking book

2013 2012
RM’000 RM’000
100 basis points parallel shocks

Earnings-at-risk 10,332 5,932
Economic Value Loss (5,701) (2,415)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
013 2012
RM’000 RM’000

Impact to profit after tax
-1% 8,254 11,318
+ 1% - (7,910) (10,987)
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet financial
instruments. Fair value is the amount at which a financial asset could be exchanged or a financial
liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The
information presented herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the balance sheet date.

Where available, quoted and observable market prices are used as the measure of fair values.
Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated
based on a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in
the uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
value estimates.

A range of methodologies and assumptions had been used in deriving the fair values of the Bank’s
financial instruments at balance sheet date.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, as derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs)

The following table presents the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2013.

Fair value measurement at end of the financial year using:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT)
- Malaysian Government Securities 199,499 199,499 - -
- Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 374,021 374,021 - -
Derivative assets
- Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 27,536 - 27,536 -
- Interest rate and cross currency swaps 4,369 - 4,369 -
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’)
Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 19,949 - 19,949 -
Malaysian Treasury bills 64,831 - 64,831 -
Unquoted shares 2,980 - - 2,980

Total assets 693,185 573,520 116,685 2,980
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2013 (continued).

Fair value measurement at end of the financial year using:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative liabilities
- Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 20,278 - 20,278 -
- Interest rate and cross currency swaps 1,878 - 1,878 -
Total liabilities 22,156 - 22,156 -

The following table presents the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2012.

Fair value measurement at end of the financial year using:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Securities held-for-trading (‘HFT’)
- Malaysian Government Securities 603,979 603,979 - -
- Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 1,477 1,477 - -
Derivative assets
- Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 4,384 - 4,384 -
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS’)
Bank Negara Malaysia Bills . 116,143 - 116,143 -
Unquoted shares 4,744 - - 4,744
Total assets 730,727 605,456 120,527 4,744
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative liabilities
- Foreign exchange forwards and swaps 5,145 - 5,145 -

Total liabilities 5,145 - 5,145 -




30

Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Bank is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primarily
Malaysian Government Securities and Bank Negara Bills classified as trading securities.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows based on observable yield curves
. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward

exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments in Level 3

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December
2013: '
Unquoted shares

RM’000
Opening balance 4,744
Total gains recognised in other comprehensive income -
Sales (1,764)

Closing balance 2,980

Total gains for the period included in profit or loss for assets held
at the end of the reporting period -

Gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period are presented in ‘Other Operating Income’
as follows:

Total gains included in profit or loss for the period 1,884
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held

at the end of the reporting period -

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December
2012:
Unquoted shares

RM’000

Opening balance 4,341

Total gains recognised in other comprehensive income 403

Closing balance 4,744
Total gains for the period included in profit or loss for assets held

at the end of the reporting period -

Gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period are presented in ‘Other Operating Income’
as follows:

Total gains included in profit or loss for the period -

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held
at the end of the reporting period -
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Significant unobservable inputs

The following table discloses the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs by the
Bank of asset recognised at fair value and classified as Level 3 with the range of values used for
those significant unobservable inputs.

Significant Reasonable

Fair value at Valuation unobservable possible
31.12.2013 technique inputs shift
RM'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
Securities Available-for-Sale (‘AFS’) .
Unguoted Shares RM2,980 Net tangible Net tangible +/- 5%
asset asset

Significant Reasonable

Fair value at Valuation unobservable possible
31.12.2012 technigue inputs shift
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Securities Available-for-Sale (‘AFS’)
Unquoted Shares RM4,744  Net tangible Net tangible +/- 5%
asset asset

If the Net Tangible Asset had been 5% higher/lower, with all other variable held constant, the
Bank’s Other Comprehensive iIncome would have been RM37,238 (2012: RM177,905) higher and
RM179,199 (2012: RM177,905) lower respectively.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Bank’s assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013, but for which fair value is disclosed.

Carrying
value Level 1 Level 2 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 2,513,159 2,513,159 - 2,513,159
Deposits and placement with banks - - - -
Loans, advances and financing* 112,983 - 112,950 112,950
Other receivables 6,430 - 6,430 6,430
Statutory deposits with
Bank Negara Malaysia 2,300 2,300 - 2,300

Total 2,634,872 2,515,459 119,380 2,634,839
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Bank’s assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013, but for which fair value is disclosed (continued).

Carrying
value Level 1 Level 2 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,888,331 - 1,888,425 1,888,425
Deposits and placement of banks
and other financial institutions 877,854 - 877,854 877,854
Bills and acceptances payable 19,111 - 19,111 19,111
Other payables 18,208 - 18,208 18,208
Total 2,803,504 - 2,803,598 2,803,598

* Excludes collective impairment allowances

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Bank’s assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012, but for which fair value is disclosed.

Carrying
value Level 1 Level 2 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 1,327,361 1,327,361 - 1,327,361
Deposits and placement with banks 989 - 989 989
Loans, advances and financing* 177,489 - 177,529 177,529
Other receivables 404 - 404 404
Statutory deposits with
Bank Negara Malaysia 2,300 2,300 - 2,300
Total 1,508,543 1,329,661 178,922 1,508,583
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,134,114 - 1,134,202 1,134,202
Deposits and placement of banks
and other financial institutions 577,653 - 577,653 577,653
Bills and acceptances payable 22,249 - 22,249 22,249
Other payables 7,280 - 7,280 7,280
Total 1,741,296 - 1,741,384 1,741,384

* Excludes collective impairment allowances
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:

(@)

(b)

()

(f)

Short-term funds and deposits and placements with banks

For short-term funds and deposits and placements with financial institutions with maturities
of less than one year, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For short-
term funds and deposits and placements with financial institutions, the carrying value
approximates the fair value as these balances are subject to variable interest rate.

Loans, advances and financing

For loans with maturities of less than one year, the carrying amounts are a reasonable
estimate of their fair value. For loans with maturities of one year or more, the fair value is
estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the prevailing market rates
of loans with similar credit risks and maturities.

The fair values of impaired loans are represented by their carrying values, net of individual
allowance, being the expected recoverable amount.

Deposits from customers

For deposits from customers with maturities of less than one year, the carrying amounts are a
reasonable estimate of their fair value. For deposit with maturities of one year or more, the
fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on prevailing market rates for
similar deposits from customers.

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

The estimated fair values of deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions
with maturities of less than one year approximate the carrying values. For deposits and
placements with maturities of one year or more, the fair values are estimated based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest rates for deposits and
placements with similar remaining period to maturities.

Other receivables and other payables

The carrying value less any allowances included in other assets and other liabilities are
assumed to approximate their fair values as these items are not materially sensitive to the shift
in market interest rates.

Bills and acceptances payable

The estimated fair values of bills and acceptances payable with maturities of less than one
year approximate the carrying values. For bills and acceptances payable with maturities of
one year or more, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using
prevailing money market interest rates for bills and acceptances payable with similar periods
to maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

201

(9]

Derivative financial assets

2012

Derivative financial assets

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

Gross amounts ~ Net amounts

of recognised of financial

financial assets

assets set presented
Gross amounts offinthe in the statement Cash
of recognised statement of of financial Financial collateral
financial assets _financial position position Instruments received
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
31,905 - 31,905 (6,945) (15,053)
4,384 - 4,384 (1,254) (903)

100

Net
amount
RM’000

9,907

2,227
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

Gross amounts Net amounis
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
liabilities set presented
Gross amounts offinthe in the statement Cash
of recognised statement of of financial Financial collateral Net
financial liabilities _financial position position Instruments paid amount
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
2013
Derivative financial liabilities 22,156 - 22,156 (6,945) (1,818) - 13,393
2012
Derivative fihancial liabilities 5,145 - 5,145 (1,254) - 3,891

101
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
arrangements above, each agreement between the Bank and the counterparty allows for net
settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the
absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however,
each party to the master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such
amounts on a net basis in the event of default includes failure by the other party to make payment
when due; failure by a party to perform any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment)
if such failure is not remedied within periods of 30 to 60 days after notice of such failure is given to the
party; or bankruptcy.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on
21 Jun 2014
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Raymond Yeoh Cheng Seong and David Allan Cairns, being two of the Directors of Bank of
America Malaysia Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set
out on pages 10 to 102 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank as at 31 December 2013 and of the results and cash flows of the Bank for the financial year
ended on that date in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 27 June 2014

=

RAYMOND YEOH CHENG SEONG D , AIRNS
DIRECTOR IRECTOR

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

1, Divyesh Subhash Shah, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Bank of
America Malaysia Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out
on pages 10 to 102 are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act,
1960.

C——
.2

DIVYESH SUBHASH SHAH

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named Divyesh Subhash Shah at Kuala Lumpur
on 27 June 2014, before me.

I ot 112. Tingkat Satuy,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 310983 V)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of America Malaysia Berhad, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 10 to 102.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the

_assessment of risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
as of 31 December 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 310983 V)
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that, in
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Bank have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the member of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the

Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

PRICEWATERHO‘/SECOOPERS ONG CHING CHUAN
(No. AF: 1146) (No. 2907/11X15 (1))
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

217 JUN 2014





